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Dulverton farmsteads

Dulverton is a large parish as well as a small town and it is easy to overlook the existence of the many large farmsteads. Some are ancient with Anglo-Saxon and possibly earlier origins as the centres of small estates such as Ashway, Broford, and Hawkwell named in Domesday Book.
 Ashway, Hawkwell, Highercombe, and Liscombe, were described in the later 13th century as vills or hamlets and people were recorded from farms called Chilcott, Combe, Hele, Hinam, Mounsey, Slade and Stockham.

An account of the sale of tithes in Dulverton parish in 1322 listed the several areas into which the parish has been divided for tithe collection. Over 30 place-names were recorded, most of which survive in the parish today.
 The Dulverton parish taxpayers in 1327 have surnames that record nearly 20 places in the parish, most surviving today as farm names.

A manor survey of 1654 describes farm tenements named Anstey, Ashway, Ashwick, Berry, Broford, Chilcott, Curslade, Draydon, Gulland, Hele Ball, Hawkwell, Highercombe, Hollam, Hunkerswell, Liscombe, Higher Marsh, Lower Marsh, Nutsford, Old Shute, Spire, Pixton, Wilway and Wood, several over 100a.
 The land tax records name farms such as Ashwick, a separate farm by 1739,
 and rates in 1739—40 also named Ashwick, Berry and Slade then farmed by the Peppin family.
 Dulverton was said to have 33 farms in the 1780s.

The 19th century was a period of building improvement on farms and also of the introduction of new technology especially water-powered chaff cutters installed at several farms including Highercombe and Northcombe. A new farmyard was provided including a barn, a linhay and stables. Liscombe farmhouse was rebuilt in the 1850s and several farms built new large barns as arable land continued to be important in the area. However, it was also a period of farm desertion, a process that continued into the 20th century. Farms abandoned included Lower Marsh, Lower Spire and Streamcombe.

The census records give details of farms with their residents, family, servants and labourers. For some years such as 1851, 1861, and 1871, rough acreages are given for farms and the number of labourers employed, although workers resident in the farmhouse are often omitted from that figure. Many farms began providing cottages for workers in the later 19th century. Ashway, for example, was a comparatively large farm with between 300 and 400 a. In 1851 the household numbered 17 including a waggoner and 9 labourers. From 1871 until 1905 or earlier it was farmed by the Hepper family from Devon. Only the youngest labourers lived with them as cottages were provided for the rest.

Around 1910 a comprehensive survey was carried out by the Inland Revenue of properties and land in every parish. The record for Dulverton compiled on the eve of war lists farms with acreages of agricultural land and wood, occupiers and owners, some of whom lived far from Dulverton. Comments on farm buildings and their condition are often very frank.
  Even franker were the comments in the 1941 farm survey, which commented on the farmers and their management of the farm as well as the quality of land and building. Although many farms in Dulverton were A rated Slade farm (180 a.) was managed for an absent farmer by a bailiff lacking labour, horses and implements who had to cultivate 43 a. of arable crops and look after 31 cattle. Ashway farm covered 400a., including 68 a. of arable crops, and was being improved after long neglect. The land, with 51 cattle, 39 sheep, 4 pigs and 30 fowls, was managed with one labourer, a tractor and two horses. The waterwheel was still used.
 

The 20th century saw many changes to Dulverton’s farms, not only to farming practices reflected in the regular Ministry of Agriculture surveys, but also in building improvements. Farms rebuilt in the early 20th century included Kennels and Hinam farms in Dulverton for the Wills family. Hinam farmhouse was provided with five bedrooms in 1910 but no bathroom.
 Slade farm in Dulverton (179.5 a.) was an example of modernisation after the Second World War. In 1947 it was a stock raising farm with a small house and adjoining one up one down cottage and adjacent farmyard comprising three ranges of traditional stone buildings. The barn, with granary over, had a threshing machine and shafting driven by an overshot water wheel. The house had no bathroom and cooking was done in a living room. By 1951 it was said several thousand pounds had been spent on the buildings and it was one of the best and healthiest farms in the district. The house had been modernised, a new house of concrete block had been built for the farm bailiff, part of the old farmyard had been converted to piggeries, and a second farmyard had been built of concrete and asbestos incorporating two cattle yards, a manure tank, a 60-ft lambing shed, and a 60-ton tower silo. Electric power and light were provided throughout. The farm was then stocked with 70 Devon and Devon cross cattle, 250 sheep, 500 poultry and 18 pigs.

copyright 

All rights, including copyright ©, of the content of this document are owned or controlled by the University of London.   For further information refer to  http://www.englandspastforeveryone.org.uk/Info/Disclaimer
 

�     VCH. Som. I, 437, 489.


�     MacDermot, E T, A History of the Forest of Exmoor (1973), 80, 88, 140—1; Chadwyck-Healey, C.E. (ed.), Somersetshire Pleas c. 1200—1256 (Somerset Record Society 11, 1897), 404; Rotuli Hundredorum temp. Hen. III and Edw. I (Record Commission, 1812—18), II, 119.


�     SRO, A/AHT 3.


�     Dickinson, F.H. (ed.), Kirby’s Quest etc. (Somerset Record Society 3, 1889), 178—82, 248.


�     SRO, DD/SF 3112.


�     SRO, Q/REl 41.


�     SRO, D/P/dul 4/1/1.


�     SRO, A/AQP.


�      See Ashway item on this website.


�      TNA, IR 58; SRO, DD/IR T7/1.


�      TNA, MAF 32.


�      SRO, D/R/du 24/1/39, 59.


�      SRO, DD/KW 1947/8; DD/X/BID 11.





Mary Suirat




Page 1


   
   Exmoor Reference



Mary Suirat




Page 4



   Exmoor Reference


[image: image1.jpg]